
1 

 

The Northampton County Board of Commissioners will meet in Regular Session on Monday, 

December 5, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room located at 100 West 

Jefferson Street, Jackson, North Carolina. The purpose of the meeting is to conduct public 

business as indicated on the following agenda. 

 

TAB  TIME  DESCRIPTION 

9:50  Agenda Work Session 
1  10:00 Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for November 21, 2016 .... 3 

2  Approval of Closed Session Minutes for November 21, 2016 ..... 40 

3   Approval of Agenda for December 5, 2016.................................. 42 

4  10:05 Ms. Leslie Edwards, Finance Director 

  Budget Amendments ..................................................................... 44 

5  10:10 Ms. Kimberly Turner, County Manager 

  Management Matters .................................................................... 50 

6 10:20 Mrs. Fannie Greene, Chairwoman of Board of Commissioners 

Presentation to Outgoing Commissioners ..................................... 59 

7  10:30 Swearing In of Elected Commissioners ........................................ 60 

8 11:00 Approval of 2017 Commissioners’ Meeting Calendar ................. 62 

9 11:05 Mr. Scott McKellar, County Attorney 

  Election of Chair and Vice Chair for Board of Commissioners ... 64 

10  11:15 Chairperson of Board of Commissioners 

  Appointment of County Attorney ................................................. 65 

11  11:20  Citizens/Board Comments 

 

  11:50  Adjourn 

 

  



2 

 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  1  

 

Agenda Time:        10:00  

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

 

Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for November 21, 2016 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 

 

  



3 

 

1 Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for November 21, 2016 

 

 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

REGULAR SESSION 

November 21, 2016 
 

Be It Remembered that the Board of Commissioners of Northampton County met on November 

21, 2016 with the following present:  Fannie Greene, Chester Deloatch, Joseph Barrett, Virginia 

Spruill and Robert Carter.  

 

Others Present:  Kimberly Turner, Leslie Edwards, Nathan Pearce, Scott McKellar, and Komita 

Hendricks 

 

Agenda Work Session:  

 

A work session was held to discuss today’s agenda items. Chairwoman Greene called upon 

County Manager Kimberly Turner for input. Ms. Turner requested to remove tab #6 and tab #12 

from the agenda. Ms. Turner reminded Commissioners of the Commissioners/Mayors meeting 

on November 30, 2016 at J.W. Faison Auditorium at 6 p.m. Chairwoman Greene called upon 

Commissioners for input. Commissioners had no changes.    

 

Regular Session: 

 

Chairwoman Greene called the meeting to order, welcomed everyone, and announced when 

citizens could make comments. Vice Chairman Barrett gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 

Allegiance was recited. 

 

Approval of Regular Session Minutes for November 7, 2016: 

 

A motion was made by Chester Deloatch and seconded by Virginia Spruill to approve the 

Regular Session Minutes for November 7, 2016.  Question Called:  All present voting yes.  

Motion carried. 

 

Approval of Closed Session Minutes for November 7, 2016: 

 

A motion was made by Virginia Spruill and seconded by Chester Deloatch to approve the Closed 

Session Minutes for November 7, 2016. Question Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion 

carried. 

 

Approval of Agenda for November 21, 2016: 

 

A motion was made by Joseph Barrett and seconded by Robert Carter to approve the agenda for 

November 21, 2016 with the deletion of tab #6 and #12.  Question Called:  All present voting 

yes.  Motion carried. 

 



4 

 

Occupational Therapy Services: 

 

Mr. Andy Smith, Health Department Director, appeared before the Board to obtain approval for 

an Occupational Therapy Services contract with Tamekia Donald, OTRL.  

 

A motion was made by Joseph Barrett and seconded by Chester Deloatch to approve the contract 

between Northampton County Health Department’s Home Health Agency and Tamekia Donald 

for occupational therapy services as presented above. Question Called:  All present voting yes.  

Motion carried. 

 

 

 

 

PLEASE SEE SCANNED DOCUMENTS WHICH ARE 

HEREBY MADE A PART OF THESE MINUTES: 

  



5 

 

 



6 

 

 



7 

 

 



8 

 

 



9 

 

 



10 

 

 



11 

 

 



12 

 

 



13 

 

 



14 

 

 



15 

 

 



16 

 

 



17 

 

 



18 

 

 



19 

 

 
 

  



20 

 

Public Hearing-Rezoning:  

 

Chairwoman Greene recessed the regular session to go into a Public Hearing. 

 

Mr. William Flynn, Planning and Zoning Director, stated the purpose of this public hearing is to 

receive and consider public input regarding a re-zoning request that, if granted, will change the 

zoning designation of 1123 acres from Agricultural Residential Watershed-1 (AR-1) to 

Agricultural-Residential (AR). 

 

Chairwoman Greene called for Commissioners comments. 

 

Vice-Chairman Barrett asked if the property owner has discussed any specific type of special 

uses for the property. 

 

Mr. Flynn stated that what the property owner wishing to do is not listed in the Special Use 

category for AR district, but is listed under Permitted Use category.  

 

Chairwoman Greene asked the exact location of property. 

 

Mr. Flynn stated the property is located on NC Highway 46 about ¾ miles south of the NC 46 

and SR-1214 intersection near Green Acre Road.  

 

Chairwoman Greene called for public comments. 

 

Mr. Ozell Thomas, citizen, asked if the property owner plans to put up a solar farm on the 

property and what effects would the solar farm have on the community, land, and livestock? 

 

Mr. Flynn stated the property owner would like to have that option if it becomes available. The 

solar activity does not affect the land. Northampton County does have a mitigation plan in 

process that requires the solar farm to clean up all materials.  

 

Mr. Thomas also asked how this benefits the community. 

 

Mr. Flynn stated the tax base because now the land has a land use value, but once solar panels 

are placed there, the rate goes up. Mr. Flynn asked County Manager Tuner for her input on tax 

value increase.  

 

County Manager Turner stated that solar farms are 80% exempt from taxes, for the equipment, 

but the land is taxable because land use value is removed from property.  

 

Mrs. Fannie Greene, citizen, asked the following:  

 In the event the property owner does decide to put a solar farm on the property, can they 

get a guarantee that no radiation problem because it’s such a large acreage?  

 What impact would the solar farm have on wildlife because the area is well known for 

hunters for the large amount of wildlife?   

 Will the solar farm affect the lake? 



21 

 

 

Mr. Flynn stated solar farms are there to collect sunlight that is turned into energy to produce 

electricity that can power homes. Mr. Flynn stated that in the past environmental impact studies 

have been done to see what the impact would have on the animals. In the past, property owners 

and the developer have left gaps so the animals could come and go. Mr. Flynn also stated the 

County requires a buffer around the area. Mr. Flynn stated there will not be a negative impact on 

the lake. 

 

Mr. Wesley Robertson, citizen, asked would there be any studies done on areas that have solar 

panels to determine the long term impact on those areas?  

 

Mr. Flynn stated there haven’t been impact studies done because there is no project now. 

 

Mr. Sylvester Piland, citizen, asked would the property owner consider selling the church 6 acres 

as a border. 

 

Mr. Flynn stated he is unsure, but will provide property owner information to him. 

 

Ms. Doris Thomas, citizen, asked if US EPA approved of these panels. 

 

Mr. Flynn stated the US EPA approval is not needed because it is almost 100% recyclable.  

 

Ms. Brooke Roberts, citizen, asked what the time frame of the project is and if the solar farm 

does come to the area will they pay for them to move out of their homes. 

 

Mr. Flynn stated there is no project now about solar farm: it may or may not happen. 

 

Ms. Shirley Bryant, citizen, asked would the solar panel generate cleaner air though electricity. 

 

Mr. Flynn stated solar energy can only be used to replace nuclear or coal energy. If companies 

use solar energy it can make air cleaner.  

 

Mr. Larry Stanley, citizen, asked would the solar farm affect the church and citizens’ taxes. 

 

Mr. Flynn stated the taxes of the surrounding property owners will not be affect, only the piece 

of property where the solar farm in located will be affected.  

 

 

Chairwoman Greene called for Commissioners comments again. 

  

Commissioner Spruill stated a solar farm does have a significant negative impact because the 

landscape and property value is going to change.  

 

Commissioner Carter recommended deferring any action on this matter until community talks 

with Mr. Futrell.  

 



22 

 

Commissioner Barrett asked Mr. Gary Brown, EDC Director, does solar farm add better tax 

situation to the County? 

 

Mr. Brown replied that the solar farms are 80% exempt from taxes and equipment is on a 

Depreciation Schedule Value.  

 

Chairwoman Greene closed the Public Hearing to enter into regular session. 

 

A motion was made by Robert Carter and seconded by Virginia Spruill that this Board defers any 

action on this matter until both parties can meet to come up with a resolution. Question Called:  

All present voting yes.  Motion carried. 

 

Chairwoman Greene asked for another date to make a discussion on this matter. The County 

Manager, Ms. Turner gave the date to hear this matter again will be on January 4, 2017 as a 

regular agenda item.  

 

Chairwoman Greene asked Mr. Flynn to conduct a Public Forum before January 4, 2017. 

 

PLEASE SEE SCANNED DOCUMENTS WHICH ARE 

HEREBY MADE A PART OF THESE MINUTES:  
 

  



23 

 

 



24 

 

 



25 

 

 



26 

 

 



27 

 

 



28 

 

 
 

 

  



29 

 

Approval/Acceptance of Real Property: 

 

Mr. Gary Brown, EDC Director, appeared before the Board to get approval/acceptance of real 

property as a gift by the Lee Family Trust on the 12.34 acre parcel of land known locally as the 

Talon or Fineline Building, Woodland NC. 

 

A motion was made by Robert Carter and seconded by Virginia Spruill to approve acceptance of 

the proposed donation of real property by the Lee Family Trust; and, authorize the Chair, the 

County Manager, the Finance Director, the County Attorney and other members of staff as 

appropriate to execute documents and procedures as may be necessary to effect the conveyance 

of the property to the ownership of Northampton County.  Question Called:  All present voting 

yes.  Motion carried. 

 

 

PLEASE SEE SCANNED DOCUMENTS WHICH ARE 

HEREBY MADE A PART OF THESE MINUTES: 

  



30 

 

 



31 

 

 



32 

 

 



33 

 

 
  



34 

 

 

Budget Amendments: 
 

Ms. Leslie Edwards, Finance Director, appeared before Board to obtain approval of Budget 

Amendment #63, #64, and #65 for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 

 

A motion was made by Joseph Barrett and seconded by Virginia Spruill that Budget Amendment 

#63, #64, #65 be adopted.  Question Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion carried. 

 

 

 

PLEASE SEE SCANNED DOCUMENTS WHICH ARE 

HEREBY MADE A PART OF THESE MINUTES: 

  



35 

 

 



36 

 

 



37 

 

 
  



38 

 

 

Management Matters: 

 

Ms. Kimberly Turner, County Manager, appeared before the Board to request a Public Hearing 

for a special use permit. 

 

Chairwoman Greene asked Mrs. Komita Hendricks, Clerk, for a date and time. Mrs. Hendricks 

gave a date of January 18, 2017 at 6:05 pm. 

 

A motion was made by Robert Carter and seconded by Joseph Barrett to hold a Public Hearing 

on January 18, 2017 at 6:05 pm for a special use permit. Question Called:  All present voting 

yes.  Motion carried. 

 

Ms. Kimberly Turner, County Manager, appeared before the Board to request that Mrs. Komita 

Hendricks be appointed as Clerk to the Board. 

 

A motion was made by Virginia Spruill and seconded by Chester Deloatch to appoint Mrs. 

Komita Hendricks as Clerk to the Board. Question Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion 

carried. 

 

Ms. Kimberly Turner, County Manager, appeared before the Board to request outside 

employment for Mrs. Komita Hendricks as a bus driver at Conway Middle School for morning 

hours. 

 

A motion was made by Robert Carter and seconded by Chester Deloatch to allow Ms. Hendricks 

to continue to drive the school bus at Conway Middle School for morning hours. Question 

Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion carried. 

 

 

Ms. Kimberly Turner, County Manager, appeared before the Board to request an approval of 

Resolution for Designation of Applicant’s Agent for North Carolina Division of Emergency 

Management. 

 

A motion was made by Joseph Barrett and seconded by Chester Deloatch to approve the 

resolution. Question Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion carried. 

 

Ms. Kimberly Turner, County Manager, appeared before the Board to request that Ms. Karen 

Cole be appointed as Northampton County Animal Cruelty Investigator. 

 

A motion was made by Joseph Barrett and seconded by Virginia Spruill to appoint Ms. Karen 

Cole as Northampton County Animal Cruelty Investigator. Question Called:  All present voting 

yes.  Motion carried. 

 

 

 

 



39 

 

Citizens/Board Comments: 

 

Chairwoman Greene called for Citizens Comments. 

 

Mr. Gary Brown, citizen, read an acknowledgment to Commissioner Spruill and Vice Chairman 

Barrett. 

 

Chairwoman Greene called for Board Comments. 

 

Commissioner Spruill stated thanks to Mr. Brown and that she has enjoyed every minute of the 

16 years. 

 

Vice Chairman Barrett states he would like to thank the Board for being patient with him; thanks 

to the citizens of Northampton County for giving him the opportunities to serve.  

 

Chairwoman Greene stated she will miss working with both Commissioner Spruill and Vice 

Chairman Barrett; thanks for your service to the Board.  

 

Attorney Scott McKellar stated it was a pleasure working with Commissioner Spruill and Vice 

Chairman Barrett. It has been a learning experience and thanks for all your patience and 

expertise. Attorney McKellar also states, he will miss both (Virginia Spruill and Joseph Barrett) 

professionally and personally.  

 

A motion was made by Chester Deloatch and seconded by Robert Carter to recess regular 

session and enter into a closed session for the purpose of G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) for the County 

Attorney’s Report.  Question Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion carried. 

 

Chairwoman Greene called for a 5 minute break. 

 

G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3): 

 

A motion was made by Chester Deloatch and seconded by Robert Carter to adjourn closed 

session.  Question Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion carried. 

 

A motion was made by Chester Deloatch and seconded by Robert Carter to reconvene regular 

session.  Question Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion carried. 

 

A motion was made by Chester Deloatch and seconded by Robert Carter to adjourn.  Question 

Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion carried. 

 

 

 

       

Komita Hendricks, Clerk to the Board 

“r.m. 11-21-16” 

 



40 

 

2 Approval of Closed Session Minutes for November 21, 2016 

 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  2  

 

Agenda Time:        10:00  

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

 

Approval of Closed Session Minutes for November 21, 2016 

(omitted) 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



41 

 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  3  

 

Agenda Time:        10:00  

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

 

Approval of Agenda for December 5, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 



42 

 

3 Approval of Agenda for December 5, 2016 

 

The Northampton County Board of Commissioners will meet in Regular Session on Monday, 

December 5, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room located at 100 West 

Jefferson Street, Jackson, North Carolina. The purpose of the meeting is to conduct public 

business as indicated on the following agenda. 

 

 

TAB  TIME  DESCRIPTION 

 

    9:50  Agenda Work Session 

 

1  10:00  Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for November 21, 2016 

2    Approval of Closed Session Minutes for November 21, 2016 

3    Approval of Agenda for December 5, 2016 

 

4  10:05  Ms. Leslie Edwards, Finance Director 

    Budget Amendments 

 

5  10:10  Ms. Kimberly Turner, County Manager 

    Managements Matters 

 

6   10:20  Mrs. Fannie Greene, Chairwoman of Board of Commissioners 

    Presentation to Outgoing Commissioners 

 

7  10:30  Swearing In of Elected Commissioners, Superior Courtroom 

 

8  11:00  Approval of 2017 Commissioners’ Meeting Calendar 

 

9  11:05  Mr. Scott McKellar, County Attorney 

    Election of Chair and Vice Chair for Board of Commissioners 

 

10  11:15  Chairperson of Board of Commissioners 

    Appointment of County Attorney 

 

11   11:20  Citizens/Board Comments 

 

   11:50  Adjourn 

 

  



43 

 

 

 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  4  

 

Agenda Time:        10:05  

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

Ms. Leslie Edwards, Finance Director 

Budget Amendments 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 



44 

 

4 Budget Amendments 

 



45 

 



46 

 



47 

 



48 

 



49 

 

  



50 

 

5 Management Matters 
 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  5  

 

Agenda Time:        10:10  

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

 

Ms. Kimberly Turner, County Manager 

Management Matters 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 

 



51 

 

 



52 

 

 



53 

 

 



54 

 

 



55 

 

 



56 

 

 



57 

 

 



58 

 

  



59 

 

 

6 Presentation to Outgoing Commissioners 
 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  6  

 

Agenda Time:     10:20     

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

Mrs. Fannie Greene, Chairwoman of Board of Commissioners 

Presentation to Outgoing Commissioners 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 

 

  



60 

 

7 Swearing In of Elected Commissioners 
 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  7  

 

Agenda Time:      10:30    

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

Swearing in of Elected Commissioners, Superior Courtroom 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 

 

  



61 

 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  8  

 

Agenda Time:        11:00  

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

Approval of 2017 Commissioners’ Meeting Calendar 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 

  



62 

 

8 Approval of 2017 Commissioners’ Meeting Calendar 

 

The Northampton County Board of Commissioners will hold its regularly scheduled 

meetings on the following dates and times (unless otherwise posted) in the Commissioners’ 

Meeting Room located at 100 West Jefferson Street Jackson, North Carolina. 
 

DATE      TIME 
 

January 4, 2017       (Wednesday)  10:00 a.m. 

January 18, 2017     (Wednesday)    6:00 p.m. 

 

February 6, 2017    10:00 a.m. 

February 20, 2017      6:00 p.m. 

 

March 6, 2017     10:00 a.m. 

March 20, 2017       6:00 p.m. 

 

April 3, 2017     10:00 a.m. 

April 17, 2017       6:00 p.m. 

 

May 1, 2017     10:00 a.m. 

May 15, 2017       6:00 p.m. 

 

June 5, 2017     10:00 a.m. 

June 19, 2017       6:00 p.m. 

 

July 3, 2017           10:00 a.m. 

July 17, 2017       6:00 p.m. 

 

August 7, 2017     10:00 a.m. 

August 21, 2017      6:00 p.m. 

 

September 6, 2017     (Wednesday)  10:00 a.m. 

September 18, 2017      6:00 p.m. 

 

October 2, 2017     10:00 a.m. 

October 16, 2017      6:00 p.m. 

 

November 6, 2017    10:00 a.m. 

November 20, 2017      6:00 p.m. 

 

December 4, 2017    10:00 a.m. 

 

No Third Monday Meeting 

 
       _________________________________ 

       Clerk to the Board 

 

 

 



63 

 

COUNTY OBSERVED HOLIDAYS 
 

Jan. 2, 2017  New Year’s Day   Sept. 4, 2017  Labor Day 

Jan. 16, 2017  Martin Luther King’s Birthday  Nov. 10, 2017  Veterans’ Day 

April 14, 2017  Good Friday    Nov. 23 & 24, 2017 Thanksgiving 

May 29, 2017  Memorial Day    Dec. 22, 25 & 26, 2017 Christmas 

Holiday 

July 4, 2017  Independence Day     

 

“Calendar for Commissioner Meetings for 2017” 

  



64 

 

9 Election of Chair and Vice Chair for Board of Commissioners 

 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  9  

 

Agenda Time:     11:05     

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

Mr. Scott McKellar, County Attorney 

Election of Chair and Vice Chair for Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 

 

  



65 

 

10 Appointment of County Attorney 

 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  10  

 

Agenda Time:      11:15    

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

Chairperson of Board of Commissioners 

Appointment of County Attorney 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 

 

  



66 

 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  12-05-16 

 

Agenda Tab Number:  11  

 

Agenda Time:        11:20  

 

 

Presenter and/or Subject Matter: 

 
 

 

 

Citizens/Board Comments 

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

Komita Hendricks 

Clerk to the Board 

 

 


